CABINET

6.00 P.M.

14TH MARCH 2023

PRESENT:- Councillors Caroline Jackson (Chair), Kevin Frea (Vice-Chair), Dave Brookes, Gina Dowding, Tim Hamilton-Cox, Tricia Heath, Cary Matthews, Sandra Thornberry, Anne Whitehead and Jason Wood

Officers in attendance:-

Chief Executive
Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
Senior Regeneration Officer
Economic Development Officer
Principal Democratic Support Officer

84 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 28 February 2023 were approved as a correct record.

85 ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS AUTHORISED BY THE LEADER

The Leader advised that she had agreed to an item of urgent business and that this would be considered in the private part of the meeting as the report was exempt by virtue of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act, 1972.

86 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations were made at this point.

87 PUBLIC SPEAKING

Members were advised that there had been no requests to speak at the meeting in accordance with Cabinet's agreed procedure.

88 OUTCOMES-BASED RESOURCING: STRUCTURE AND PROGRAMME

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor)

Cabinet received a report from the Chief Executive that proposed the principles, structure and outline plan for the Outcomes-Based Resourcing (OBR) programme in 2023-24 to pursue an outcomes-focused approach whilst achieving sustainable long-term financial and resourcing stability.

The options, options analysis, including risk assessment and officer preferred option, were set out in the report as follows:

Option 1: Approve the proposed OBR programme and approach

Advantages

Approving the proposals will enable an outcomes-focused approach to the district's success, whilst delivering sustainable long-term financial and resource stability.

Disadvantages

None identified in this report.

Risks

Circumstances may continue to change through the lifecycle of the programme, requiring a level of strategic flexibility and agility.

Option 2: Do not approve the proposed OBR programme and approach

Advantages

None identified in this report.

Disadvantages

Failure to take a structured and coordinated approach to strategic success and resource stability would have severe disadvantages for both the council and the Lancaster district.

Risks

As above.

The officer preferred option is Option 1. Pursuing the OBR programme will enable an outcomes-focused approach to the district's success, whilst delivering sustainable long-term financial and resource stability.

Councillor Caroline Jackson proposed, seconded by Councillor Dowding:-

"That the recommendation, as set out in the report, be approved."

Councillors then voted:-

Resolved unanimously:

(1) That Cabinet approves the delivery of the Outcomes-Based Resourcing (OBR) programme based on the principles and outline structure set out in the report, along with the outline Programme Plan set out in Appendix A to the report.

Officer responsible for effecting the decision:

Chief Executive

Reasons for making the decision:

The Outcomes-Based Resourcing programme represents the council's plan for successfully delivering positive outcomes for the Lancaster district whilst achieving long-term financial and resourcing sustainability for the council. As such, this report contributes to each of the council's strategic Priorities as set out in its core Plan 2030.

89 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

It was moved by Councillor Dowding and seconded by Councillor Heath:-

"That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, on the grounds that it could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 Schedule 12A of that Act."

Members then voted as follows:-

Resolved unanimously:

(1) That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, on the grounds that it could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.

90 ITEM OF URGENT BUSINESS - APPROVAL TO BID FOR FUNDING (Pages 7 - 9)

(Cabinet Members with Special Responsibility Councillors Hamilton-Cox & Matthews)

Cabinet received a report from the Head of Housing, and Head of Property, Investment, and Regeneration to consider the next steps for engagement in a private sector-led regeneration proposal and approval to bid for Brownfield Land Release Fund Round 2. The report was exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act, 1972.

The Chair of Overview & Scrutiny had agreed to the item being considered via Special Urgency in accordance with Rule 15 of the Access to Information Rules.

The options, options analysis, including risk assessment and officer preferred option, were set out in the exempt report.

Councillor Hamilton-Cox proposed, seconded by Councillor Cary Matthews:-

"That the recommendations as set out in the exempt report, be approved."

Councillors then voted:-

Resolved unanimously:

The resolution is set out in minute exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act, 1972.

Officers responsible for effecting the decision:

Head of Housing, and Head of Property, Investment, and Regeneration

Reasons for making the decision:

The decision is consistent with the Council's priorities. Exactly how the decision fits

with Council's priorities is set out in the exempt minute.

91 LANCASTER CANAL QUARTER - EARLY PHASE HOUSING REGENERATION PROPOSALS - UPDATE REPORT (Pages 10 - 12)

(Cabinet Members with Special Responsibility Councillors Hamilton-Cox & Matthews)

Cabinet received a report from the Head of Housing, and Head of Property, Investment, and Regeneration to update on previous agreed actions and consider next steps in progressing the early phase Canal Quarter housing proposals. Whilst the report was exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act, 1972 with the agreement of the meeting the Leader requested that the recommendations be included in the public minute, unless commercially sensitive.

The options, options analysis, including risk assessment and officer preferred option, were set out in the exempt report.

Councillor Hamilton-Cox proposed, seconded by Councillor Cary Matthews:-

"That the recommendations as set out in the exempt report, be approved."

Councillors then voted:-

Resolved unanimously:

- (1) That Officers progress to the tender stage of the preferred developer competition to assess proposals from the short-listed parties interested in promoting a housing scheme for the Nelson Street site.
- (2) That Tender documentation / developer prospectus is issued to the shortlisted parties, detailing the council's specific conditions, aspirations, and objectives for the development.
- (3) That the specific conditions include the requirement that the completed development must achieve at least a minimum 75% reduction in carbon emissions against Part L of the Building Regulations 2013.
- (4) That proposals are assessed by officers against the balanced scorecard of price (offer) / quality / social value factors.
- (5) That Officers report on the outcome of the tender phase and recommend a preferred proposal / Preferred Developer Partner (PDP) to Cabinet.
- (6) That authority to offer the PDP an exclusivity period and move on to finalise the formal development agreement with the council is made by Cabinet following consideration of the tender phase report.
- (7) Resolution 7 is set out in a minute exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act, 1972.

Officers responsible for effecting the decision:

Head of Housing, and Head of Property, Investment, and Regeneration

Reasons for making the decision:

The decision is consistent with the Council's priorities. Exactly how the decision fits with Council's priorities is set out in the exempt minute.

92 URGENT DECISION TAKEN BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE - ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT AWARD MONEY

In accordance with the Scheme of Delegation to Officers (Part 2, Section 7 – Delegations to the Chief Executive Matters of Urgency) the Chief Executive submitted a report to Cabinet with details of an urgent decision taken under Rule 15 following consultation with the Leader, relevant portfolio holders and with the agreement of the Chair of Overview & Scrutiny. The decision which was exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act, 1972 was with regard to the acceptance of grant award money. Details of the urgent decision including the circumstances which made the action necessary were set out in the exempt report. The Chief Executive responded to several questions.

It was agreed that Cabinet's support for the decision should be reflected in the resolution.

Resolved unanimously:

That Cabinet notes and supports the decision taken as a matter of urgency by the Chief Executive in accordance with the Constitution, as detailed in the exempt report.

Chair

(The meeting ended at 6.30 p.m.)

Any queries regarding these Minutes, please contact Liz Bateson, Democratic Services - email ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk

MINUTES PUBLISHED ON MONDAY 20 MARCH, 2023.

EFFECTIVE DATE FOR IMPLEMENTING THE DECISIONS CONTAINED IN THESE MINUTES: TUESDAY 28 MARCH ,2023.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted